
 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 1 of 2 
 
 

MORROW COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, April 5, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. 

Morrow County Government Center, Don Adams Conference Room 
215 N.E. Main Ave., Irrigon, Oregon 
Zoom Meeting Information on Page 2 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance - 9:00 a.m. 
2. City/Citizen Comments 
3. Open Agenda:  The Board may introduce subjects not on the agenda 
4. Consent Calendar 

a. Minutes:  March 15th 
b. Amendments 7 & 8 to Oregon Health Authority Intergovernmental Agreement 

#173145 for the Financing of Mental Health Services 
c. Contract with DLR Group for Site Review 

5. Business Items   
a. Community Counseling Solutions Quarterly Report (Kimberly Lindsay, 

Executive Director)  
b. Update from PGE on Hydrogen Project (Wendy Veliz) 
c. Update on Outside Legal Counsel’s Review of Matters Related to the Morrow 

County Ambulance Service Area Plan (Chair Sykes) 
d. Review the Motion to Table the Request for a Letter in Support of Ambulance 

Licensing from Boardman Fire Rescue District  
e. Request to Repeal Ordinance MC-C-4-98:  In the Matter of Regulating 

Ambulance Service Providers (Chief Mike Hughes, Boardman Fire Rescue Dist.) 
f. Ordinance No. ORD-2023-3:  Amending Approval of Permits for Construction in 

the Right-of-Way (Justin Nelson, County Counsel) 
g. Appointment Request, Public Transit Advisory Committee (Benjamin Tucker, 

Transit Manager) 
6. Department Reports 

a. Road Department Quarterly Report (Mike Haugen) 
b. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (Melissa Camarillo) 
c. Fair Office Quarterly Report 
d. District Attorney Quarterly Report (Justin Nelson) 
e. Human Resources Quarterly Report (Lindsay Grogan) 
f. Public Health Quarterly Report (Robin Canaday) 
g. Administrator’s Report (Roberta Vanderwall) 

7. Legislative Updates 
8. Correspondence 
9. Commissioner Reports 
10. Executive Session:  Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(g) – To consider preliminary 

negotiations involving matters of trade or commerce in which the governing body is in 
competition with governing bodies in other states or nations; and Pursuant to ORS 
192.660(2)(f) – To consider information or records that are exempt by law from public 
inspection – (ORS 285C.620)  



 
Morrow County Board of Commissioners Agenda                                                        Page 2 of 2 
 
 

11. Public Hearing (ORS 285C.609(4)):  Strategic Investment Program (SIP) Agreement 
with Amazon Data Services, Inc. 

a. Consideration of a SIP Agreement with Amazon Data Services, Inc. 
b. Accept public testimony concerning SIP Agreement 
c. Consideration of Resolution R-2023-4:  Requesting Oregon Business 

Development Department Exempt Amazon Data Services, Inc. from Property 
Taxation Under the Strategic Investment Program 

12.  Signing of documents 
13. Adjournment 

 
Agendas are available every Friday on our website (www.co.morrow.or.us/boc under 
“Upcoming Events”).  Meeting Packets can also be found the following Monday. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at 
least 48 hours before the meeting to Roberta Lutcher at (541) 676-5613. 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.640, this agenda includes a list of the principal subjects anticipated to be 
considered at the meeting; however, the Board may consider additional subjects as well. This 
meeting is open to the public and interested citizens are invited to attend. Executive sessions are 
closed to the public; however, with few exceptions and under specific guidelines, are open to the 
media. The Board may recess for lunch depending on the anticipated length of the meeting and 
the topics on the agenda. If you have anything that needs to be on the agenda, please notify the  
Board office before noon of the preceding Friday.  If something urgent comes up after this 
publication deadline, please notify the office as soon as possible. If you have any questions about  
items listed on the agenda, please contact Interim Administrator, Roberta Vanderwall, 541-676-
2529. 

Zoom Meeting Information 
 

https://zoom.us/j/5416762546  Password:  97836  Meeting ID: 541-676-2546 
 
Zoom Call-In Numbers for Audio Only Using Meeting ID 541-676-2546#: 

• 1-346-248-7799 1-312-626-6799 
• 1-669-900-6833  1-929-436-2866 

 
Zoom Specific Notes: 

• If joining by a browser, use the raise hand icon to indicate you would like to provide 
public comment, if and when allowed.  If using a phone, press *9 to indicate you would 
like to speak and *6 to unmute when you are called on. 

• Morrow County provides the option for Zoom Translated Captions.  
o Instructions:    https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/6643133682957-

Enabling-and-configuring-translated-captions 
o If you need further assistance, please contact Justin Nelson at 

jnelson@co.morrow.or.us 

http://www.co.morrow.or.us/boc
https://zoom.us/j/5416762546
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/6643133682957-Enabling-and-configuring-translated-captions
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/6643133682957-Enabling-and-configuring-translated-captions






























































































Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion

Community Counseling Solutions
All Staff Presentation



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Goal #1: Increase understanding of DEI within the CCS agency, 
and identify our individual and collective roles in understanding 
how explicit and implicit bias impacts staff and clients.

Goal #2: Use our understanding from staff input to improve 
services, especially regarding access and equity.

Goal #3: Be a leading example for diversity , equity and inclusion 
within the agency and on behalf of the people we serve.

   

CCS’ Goals



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022
   

Intrapersonal

Interpersonal

Operations/Culture

External Influence

Intrapersonal is “within a 
person”. It’s the 

conscious or unconscious 
way a person thinks 

about and relates to their 
life situations

Interpersonal is “between 
people”. It’s the conscious or 
unconscious way a person 

responds to others and/or how 
people respond to each other. 

Operations/Culture is the 
implicit operating 

agreements, explicit 
operating 

policies/procedures and 
organizational culture of 

your company.

External Influence is your 
programming, services, 
products, partnerships 

and other external 
relationships you 

influence.

Soil and Shadow’s Systems Approach



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Fertility is how living systems thrive - increasing the complexity of relationships between people and 

systems breeds health for all.

Shadow is a reminder to seek what is hidden, so that it becomes our ally instead of our downfall. 

Creating pathways to integrate what has been hidden is the difficult, confronting, and life-changing 

work of new leadership.

Joy reminds us and our clients to cultivate the ability to lose ourselves in moments of peace and 

ecstasy, to create the circumstance for those moments to occur whenever possible in the midst of 

serious work. 

   

Soil and Shadow’s Values



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Survey Responses  

○ Staff and Board Members

● 163 Staff members (this does not include focus groups)

● Four Board members 

Interviews  

○ Four Focus Groups (one attendee)

○ Five phone interviews

   

Surveys and Interviews



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Reading The Graphs/Comments
Scaled questions are ranked on a 1-7 scale with 1 being strongly disagree and 7 
being strongly agree. 

On this scale, the neutral response is 4, which means that responses above 4 are 
interpreted as a positive-leaning sentiment regarding the question asked. (i.e) An 
average response of 5 to the question “How comfortable are you discussing topics of 
race?” indicates comfort with the topics.

Open ended comments from surveys have been anonymized. We use excerpts from 
survey comments to underscore the information being presented. 

The information presented here is based on an analysis of the questions asked of 
participants. We seek to identify major trends that will be helpful in attaining CCS’ 
goals.



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Soil and Shadow carefully reviewed the responses to over 60 
questions from 164 staff members. This presentation is distilled 
into five sections summarizing our observations and 
recommendations. 

1. Comfort discussing DEI Topics
2. Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Knowledge
3. Workplace Communication 
4. Workplace Cohesion
5. Comments from staff members

Five Sections to Support CCS’ DEI Goals



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

The following charts indicate participant’s receptivity to a building 
block of Diversity Equity, and Inclusion; that is, consideration for 
and harmony with the many ways people show up in the world.

Overall, participants appear more comfortable discussing disability 
and race than class, gender and sexual orientation. 

Comfort Discussing DEI Topics



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q20: How comfortable are you discussing issues of:  Disability

85.27% selected 5 or above)



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q14: How comfortable are you discussing issues of: Race

78.05% selected 5 or above)



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q18: How comfortable are you discussing issues of: Class and Classism

69.93% selected 5 or above)



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q18: How comfortable are you discussing issues of: Gender

69.13% selected 5 or above)



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q18: How comfortable are you discussing issues of: Sexual Orientation

69.13% selected 5 or above



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Provide regular updates on DEI related terminology and cultural 
dynamics so staff have current information. This serves both the 
internal work environment and client services.

Be proactive in hosting and facilitating conversations which help staff 
members understand the nuances of a diverse client base. 

Recommendation
Comfort Discussing DEI Topics



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Responses indicate that CCS employees are well positioned to 
begin integrating DEI into their work. There is average to high, 
self-reported understanding of the terms ‘diversity’, ‘equity’, and 
‘inclusion.’ 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Knowledge



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q11: Based on this definition of DIVERSITY, how knowledgeable about this topic do 
you personally feel?  Diversity includes all the ways in which people differ, 
encompassing the different characteristics that make one individual or group 
different from another.

84.77% selected 5 or above



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q12: Based on this definition of EQUITY, how knowledgeable about this topic do you 
personally feel? Equity is the fair treatment, access, opportunity, and advancement for all 
people, while at the same time striving to identify and eliminate barriers that have 
prevented the full participation of some groups.

85.36% selected 5 or above



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q13: Based on this definition of INCLUSION, how knowledgeable about this topic 
do you personally feel?Inclusion is the act of creating environments in which any 
individual or group can be and feel welcomed, respected, supported, and valued to 
fully participate.

85.36% selected 5 or above)



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Begin  DEI training in areas that strongly influence other parts of 
the organization.  Eg. HR impacts nearly every area. This may be 
a great place to start. 

Recommendation
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Knowledge



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Staff is largely in agreement on their commitment to the CCS 
Cultural Competency Statement. This is an excellent foundation 
on which to improve the culture of open discussion about the 
organization’s vision and goals. This is important to ensure that 
the staff can work together cohesively toward DEI goals.

Workplace Cohesion



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q27: I commit to fulfilling Community Counseling Solutions Cultural 
Competence statement?

91.25% selected 5 or above



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Facilitate brown bag lunches or some form of group dialogue to 
encourage conversation about CCS' Cultural Competence 
statement.

Recommendation
Workplace Cohesion



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Due to the recently added counties and services at CCS, it is 
important to monitor cultural differences while seeking to 
understand and support the transition for all staff.

Host cross-cultural conversations in ways that emphasize learning 
and community building, amongst all counties served by CCS.

Recommendation
Workplace Cohesion



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Based on responses, there is room for improvement in meeting 
structure and organizational communication that offers 
opportunities to incorporate effective communication and ‘big 
picture thinking’ about day to day operations. 

Workplace Communications



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q41: The meetings at the organization are: Held in ways that 
encourage all types of participation.



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q29: Community Counseling Solutions makes time for generative discussions about 
vision, goals, and strategy in a way that integrates diversity, equity, and inclusion at 
team meetings, retreats, etc.



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Examine current CCS meeting structures and support models for 
meetings that are used throughout the organization. Be clear when 
a meeting is designed to:

● Inform
● Solicit Input
● Collaborate
● Convenes with multiple purposes with designated time 

allotments for each 
Resource: https://hbr.org/2022/09/3-types-of-meetings-and-how-to-do-each-one-well

Recommendation
Workplace Communications

https://hbr.org/2022/09/3-types-of-meetings-and-how-to-do-each-one-well


Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Feedback received on questions regarding involvement in day-to-day 
operations indicate that there are participants who do wish to have more 
influence on day-to-day operations but are not engaged in a way that 
makes this possible. 

Examine CCS’s decision-making norms. Look for places to address 
overwhelm by delegating or distributing decision-making authority.
Be clear about current decision-making norms and update if changes are 
made. Organizational clarity and communication about decision-making 
gives employees more confidence to navigate their day-to-day challenges. 
This has direct implications for equity, diversity, and retention.

Recommendation
Workplace Communications



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Invite and implement staff suggestions for creating more joy in the 
workplace.

Promote aspects of wellness programs and health benefits which 
provide personal health practices. Eg. Exercise, meditation, 
nutrition, social engagement. 

Additional Recommendations
Joy in the Workplace



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

This assessment only engaged staff members. Although, many 
survey respondents have direct contact with the community 
members served by CCS - their observations are not an adequate 
replacement for directly surveying those who are receiving 
services or are influenced by those services (eg. family members.)

Survey those who receive CCS services, and their personal care 
givers directly.

Additional Recommendations
Community Engagement



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Survey Question: Please identify one thing that would improve the 
working relationships between people in leadership roles and other 
staff members:

● Talking through discomfort together.
● Greater effort toward inclusion of new staff in organizational 

culture.
● Fostering interpersonal relationships among staff as a means of 

offering support to each other.
● Interpersonal peer support and leadership training for managers.
● An open door policy.

Summarized Comments from  Survey Respondents



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Survey Question: Which of these organizational improvements would you like to see…?

● The most common improvements requested were:
○ More transparency
○ Dedicating more time for open forum discussion
○ Process for staff cohesion
○ Process for decision-making 

Recommendations:
Conduct a power analysis aimed at reconciling CCS' Cultural Competence statement and 
decision-making structures within CCS.

Review CCS's decision-making protocols in alignment with equity goals. 

Increase transparency around decision-making. This directly relates to equity.

Comments from  Survey Respondents



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

Q53: Which of these organizational culture improvements would you like to see at 
the organization? 



Community Counseling Solutions DEI Assessment    June  2022

● Make peer groups and community programs a main focus.
● Create additional opportunities for diverse populations to provide feedback about their 

specific needs and whether those needs are being met satisfactorily.
● Process suggestion: Invite other agencies/advocates to all staff meetings to brainstorm.
● Leadership should engage with external events and get out into communities, to learn 

through direct experience.
● Increase LGBTQ support services for teens.
● How much information does CCS have about deeper issues impacting those the 

organization serves? Develop ways to seek ongoing information about “where things 
are” and develop a service revision plan from there. 

● CCS should increase openness to serving those with developmental disabilities.
● Public displays of fund raising for the homeless, involvement in partnerships with other 

agencies that are helping the homeless. 

   

Summarized Comments from  Survey Respondents
Service Access Suggestions



































































































Agency Combined Consumer Survey Results

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others involved in my
care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first started with
CCS

I would recommend CCS Mental Health and/or Substance Use Disorders services to others

Agency Combined

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree



Gilliam County

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others involved in
my care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first started with
CCS

I would recommend CCS Mental Health and/or Substance Use Disorders services to others

Gilliam County

Strongly Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly Disagree



Gilliam County Comments

• “CCS has vastly improved since I first started 5 years ago”
• “Damon is so easy to talk to. Also friendly and comforting”



Grant County

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others involved
in my care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first started
with CCS

I would recommend CCS Mental Health and/or Substance Use Disorders services to others

Grant County

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree



Grant County Comments

• “Appreciative of the kindness”
• “They are amazing”
• “I receive great service, even from those that are not my primary 

counselors”
• “The staff at CCS is very understanding. Time is managed excellently. 

Always smiling and a wonderful environment.”
• “Everyone is absolutely amazing, especially Jessy up front.”
• “ I have been coming here for 20 years, they have helped me 

tremendously.”



Morrow County

0 2 4 6 8 10 12

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others
involved in my care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first
started with CCS

I would recommend CCS Mental Health and/or Substance Use Disorders services to others

Morrow County

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree



Morrow County Comments

• “I am thankful for the help I have gotten.”
• “CCS has been very helpful.”
• “I am very satisfied.”
• “CCS is great!”
• “ Olivia is awesome. Thank you!”
• “The staff is very patient and kind.”



Umatilla Count Mental Health

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others involved
in my care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first started
with CCS

I would recommend CCS services to others

Umatilla County MH

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree



Umatilla County  Mental Health Comments

• “Amazing people and I love how positive and supportive everyone is.”
• “They are awesome.”
• “Being friendly with others.”
• “ I do recommend.”
• “ I am grateful and the counselor listens to me.”
• “Even though I was able to find job placement, the cost of the taxi 

was more than I would have made working.”
• Joe Fleck is the best. Also the girls up front.”



Umatilla County  Mental Health Comments 
continued

• “That God is faithful.”
• “Love, love the staff.”
• “Some staff are out a lot and I feel that isn’t helpful to my needs.”
• “While the transition from Lifeways to CCS was rough, especially the 

wait times to get appointments, I appreciate how caring, attentive, 
and thorough the CCS staff have been”

• “The front office and wraparound teams are the strengths of your 
agency from my perspective. They are polite and professional. The are 
born problem solvers.”



Umatilla County  Mental Health Comments 
continued

• “I am happy wit the help I get, but grateful to talk to someone nice 
and understanding.”

• “I love the new pharmacy service Genoa. It has been a lifesaver in my 
household. And it’s really nice how personable the staff here are. 
They really care.”

• “Need faster times in with the therapist.”
• “I would recommend this to anyone. They have helped me is so many 

ways.”
• “Pendleton office reigns supreme.”



Umatilla County  Mental Health Comments 
continued

• “Joe Fleck is the best counselor & the front desk crew is amazing with 
all they deal with daily.”

• “I like the counselors are learning new therapies.”



Umatilla County Chemical Dependency

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others involved in
my care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first started
with CCS

I would recommend CCS  services to others

Umatilla County CD

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree



Umatilla County  Chemical Dependency 
Comments

• “Thank you, Tim, Caryn, Rebal, Roxanne, Randy & Tabitha. You have 
all made a change in me for the good.”

• “CCS has been very helpful in my recovery.”
• Great services, but I feel they could have more availability for 

appointments etc.”
• “y’all cool.”
• “ I like the all-around services, mental health and addictions.”
• “ I felt very comfortable sharing.”
• “ Staff takes time to meet and exceed my expectations.”



Umatilla County  Chemical Dependency 
Comments

• “The staff at CCS are always incredibly friendly and always seem to 
have my best interests at heart.”

• “ Staff is very caring and the group facilitators/counselors well 
informed and trained. Groups are very informative and helpful.”

• “ It was hard at first, but I am happy with how much all the classes 
have helped me get better.”

• “I love CCS. They’re great.”
• “I think it is a great program for those in need.”
• “The comfortability you experience when you begin group is second 

to none.”



Umatilla County  Chemical Dependency 
Comments

• “I have learned a lot so far and plan to learn more. I don’t like the 
idea that what I share with my counselors can be used against me 
with my parole officer.”



Wheeler County

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16

I feel my personal information was kept confidential and shared only as necessary with others
involved in my care

When I first came to CCS, I was able to receive treatment in a reasonable amount of time

Staff were sensitive to my cultural/ethnic background

From a Mental Health and/or Substance Use perspective, I am healthier now than when I first
started with CCS

I would recommend CCS  services to others

Wheeler County

Strongly Disagree Disagree Neutral Agree Strongly Agree



Wheeler County Comments

• “I am really thankful for the great people at CCS who help me and 
work with me. I am truly blessed, Thank you!””

• I love Shannon Hill. Not only do I feel she’s my counselor, but also my 
friend.”

• “Shannon Hill is amazing. My life has changed because of Shannon. I 
would recommend Shannon.”



January 2023 

 

Which is better, Jif of Skippy?   Just asking 

the question has already elicited a strong re-

action from many.  If we were all in the same 

(large) room, my guess is a fierce debate 

would ensue.  Hopefully relationships 

would still be in tact...  

According to sales, Jif is the preferred product 

of choice.  But that has not always been the 

case.  Skippy entered the market in 1933.  Jif 

didn’t enter the scene until 1958.  Skippy led 

sales by a wide margin until 1977 when Jif 

sales began to steadily increase, so much so 

that by 1980, JIF was the leading brand.  You 

might guess that one changed their recipe or 

ingredients.  You would be wrong.  The single 

reason for the increase in 

sales was a brilliant mar-

keting commercial.  Some 

of you may remember the 

phrase from the JIF com-

mercial that went: “Choosy 

mothers choose JIF”.   The slogan completely 

inferred that you were not a good mother if 

you did not choose Jif.   And just like that, 

those four words changed the sales trajectory 

of Jif, catapulting it to the top of both domes-

tic and global markets where it remains to-

day.  The good news is that Jif is a good prod-

uct.  The bad news is that sometimes in ad-

vertising, a good ad does not guarantee a good 

product or service. 

CCS engages in advertising, daily.  We have 

Facebook and Instagram pages promoting our 

services, ads in newspapers and on billboards, 

brochures and flyers throughout the state, a 

website, radio ads, swag with our logo, etc.  

And you as employees advertise our work.  In 

fact, I would say that you are the best and 

most visible advertisers of the work we do.   

 

At times, this may make you weary.  We are ap-

proached at the grocery store, by our family, 

neighbors, at school functions and so on about 

how to best help someone.  Though sometimes 

after hours, sometimes with your own family, 

sometimes at the most inopportune moments, 

time and again I have seen employees stop what 

they are doing to provide compassionate sup-

port and recommendations.  I also see employ-

ees working hard to improve the services and 

ensure that the services we are providing are 

the best.  The thoughtful questions, attendance 

at trainings, requests for system improvements, 

research on topics, and desire to be great are 

what sets CCS apart.    

I have seen employees promote our agency tire-

lessly, both in word and in deed.  For this, from 

the bottom of my heart and the top of my lungs 

sending a loud shout to everyone for all you do 

to ensure that CCS a great place to work and 

services are top notch.  Our slogan is just two 

words.  “Changing Lives”.  I believe that we are 

doing that all day, every day.   

If you’ve made it this far, take a moment and 

tell us which side of the coin you land on:  

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/Jif_or_Skippy 

~Kimberly 

P.S. 

Of late I have added a few 
more tasks to my to do 
list.  This is a photo me 
vaccinating pregnant 
ewes.  Hope this brings a 
chuckle.  I only stuck my-
self one time!   

Director’s Corner 

COMMUNITY 
COUNSELING 
CONNECTIONS 

Staying Connected! 

https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/Jif_or_Skippy


COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  Page 2 



Page 3 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  



Page 4 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

 THE BOOK NOOK:  WHY WE SLEEP 

AUTHOR: MATTHEW WALKER  REVIEWER: KARA PATTINSON 

 

Did you know when birds are lined up on a wire sleeping the birds on both ends have brains that are 

only half asleep corresponding to the half of their brain controlling the bird’s interior eye leaving the eye 

on the outside available to monitor the environment? And then the birds on both ends switch sides to 

allow the other half of their brains to sleep. What? 

 

I learned this in a fascinating book recommended by our own Sarah Brown. This book sounds like it 

might cure insomnia, but actually it is an interesting look at the importance of sleep and a discussion of 

what we know about sleep. Sarah was intrigued by a discussion of how alcohol and nicotine effect 

sleep...surprise, not well it turns out. I was interested in the earlier part of the book in which the author 

leads you down a path towards his theory that sleep might be more important than wakefulness. He was 

so convincing in his argument that I tended to agree with him. All mammals sleep. Why would 

that be if it weren’t vital? And when you sleep you are incredibly vulnerable, not eating, not 

procreating, and not defending your genetic pool. There has to be a pay off. We know 

relatively little about this full third of our lives. 

 

Sleep is broken up into distinct stages, but primarily NREM and REM. We cycle back and 

forth between these stages in a predictable way and the impact of disrupting this pat-

tern is also predictable. NREM is characterized by deep, slow brainwaves. Our cortex is 

relaxed during this stage and the brain is thought to be readying itself for the transfer of 

information from your day. During REM sleep the brainwaves change, appear similar to 

wakefulness, and you dream. NREM is thought to store the information and REM to consolidate and 

make it meaningful by making connections between thoughts, feelings and events. During REM we solve 

problems and develop insights that weren’t apparent while we were awake. The author provides evi-

dence for how disruption of these stages via things like national time changes, teenagers with earlier 

than appropriate school start times, and the use of alcohol or sleep medications leads to poor memory 

consolidation, less stability emotionally, poorer physical health, automobile accidents and some specific 

disease states. 

 

The author concludes with a discussion of how to improve your sleep. There is not a lot of new 

suggestions outside of what many of us know as part of good sleep hygiene recommendations. And 

because this book is so engrossing, it won’t put you to sleep either. 

 



Page 5 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

A Supported Employment client started in the program with high anxiety and depres-

sion. The client was in a financially abusive situation, had been couch surfing, and 

struggled to support themself. While with Supported Employment, the client became 

employed and has been consistent with that job. The client is moving into their very 

first apartment on their own. They are working with SE and VR to start schooling in 

computer science, so they can achieve their dream career of being a work from home 

IT customer support specialist. The client has learned to manage their anxiety while 

at work and find meaning in helping the customers. The client overcame numerous 

hardships from learning to count money to working with upset customers, and has 

learned to focus on positive work interactions. The SE team is proud of how far this 

client has come in their employment journey. 

Supported Employment Success Story   

 Congratulations to Jennifer Campbell for completing her Masters of Science in Psychology with 

a concentration in child and adolescent development!  ~ Kristie Bingaman 

 Shout out to Mike Snyder for working hard to save the agency money with some of our new 

projects.  CCS appreciates Mike’s financial savviness when making decisions. ~ Matt Bergstrom 

 Shout out to Jash Rolfe and Nate Kennedy for the work they have done throughout the agency.  

They have been tackling some long overdue proects and made some great improvements at 

many of our locations. ~ Matt Bergstrom 

 Shout out to Hal Kirkland for stepping up and helping out with some mental health assess-

ments for other programs!   ~Matt Bergstrom 

 Shout out to Jayme Pettibone, Brandy Quezada-Hermosilla and all staff at Columbia River 

Ranch for supporting our residents during the challenging times over the last month! ~Matt 

Bergstrom 

 Shout out to those individuals that have helped with crisis response debriefs, unfortunately 

they have been very busy over the last year.  We thank them for all the amazing work they do.  

Your support not only for our staff, but our communities is more appreciated than you may ev-

er know.  ~Matt Bergstrom 

 Shout out to the billing team for all of their hard work during the transition.  ~ Emily Lippert 

KUDOS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS 



Page 6 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

Any day is a great day to celebrate school counselors, but the week of February 6, 2023 is National 

School Counselor Week. I would like to take the opportunity to recognize the amazing school counselors 

we have here at CCS. The school-based team has grown over the last year when the agency added 

Umatilla Co.  

Jennifer Slippy works for Athena Weston School District as a mental health counselor within the 

schools. She is excited about building this collaboration as this is the first year AWSD has had a full-time 

counselor. She is a positive and energetic light within the schools and is working hard building rapport 

with students and staff.  

Rikki Griffin is a school-based counselor within a school-based health center and is based out of Pend-

leton High School, and middle school. She has a positive attitude and energy about her. She is working 

on starting therapy groups within the schools, as well as providing groups for clients who may not meet 

a mental health diagnosis but need support.  

Katie Hams is the school-based counselor working in the Condon School District at the elementary and 

high school. Katie has been in that role since 2015 and continues to have a strong relationship with 

students and staff. Katie provides prevention, education and outreach to students in the way of class-

room lessons and individual sessions. She can be seen helping out in whatever other ways the school asks. 

Katie is a very hard worker and her biggest asset is her kind and caring nature.  

Sammi Lane works in the Arlington Schools, both elementary and high school, as the school counselor. 

This is her second year in that position. She quickly built trust there and works hard seeing students 

and providing classroom lessons. She works with the leadership team at the school to identify and ad-

dress needs. Sammi is full of energy and CCS and the schools are lucky to have her.  

Sara Jane Moore has been the counselor at the Grant/Union School Based Health Center since 2015. 

She works as a team with the medical provider at the SBHC to provide holistic care to students. Sara 

Jane does assessments and individual therapy for students at both G/U School and Humbolt Elemen-

tary. Sara Jane is a great school counselor!  

Sarah Welton works at three different schools in Grant Co.-Prairie 

City, Monument and Dayville. She’s in her second year as a school 

counselor for CCS. Sometimes referred to as the “traveling counselor” 

Sarah has a wide variety of skills, especially in play therapy. She 

brings creativity and fun to her days at the schools and her energy is 

endless.  

 

Celebrating School Counselors 



Page 7 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

Brooke Ansotegui started at the Ione School Based Health Center just this year. She has already bridged 

a gap between the Ione School/community and CCS and once she’s back from maternity leave, she will 

have a full schedule! This is Brooke’s second stint working for CCS and we are so lucky to have her back 

and on the school team! 

Amy George works in the Heppner Schools. Amy connects quickly and easily with any kid and is a com-

forting and reassuring presence. Amy has helped to establish a fund at the Heppner Schools called 

“Students Without Limits Fund.” This fund specifically helped provide Christmas presents this year for 

11 students at the Heppner Schools. She even got to do the shopping and wrapping! We don’t know 

where we’d be without Amy! 

Saige Moore works in the Sam Boardman Elementary School. Saige is great at connecting with young 

students and helps them successfully process through big emotions. Saige also continues to work during 

the summer months, so has been a huge help to the outpatient office doing assessments and seeing indi-

viduals, as well as crisis work. Saige is always willing to help anyone out.   

Kahrissa Pratt works at the Riverside Jr/Sr HS in Boardman. She is awesome at managing everything 

that is thrown her way and has an amazing ability to connect with teens. Kahrissa continues to work 

hard to maintain the strong relationship between CCS and Morrow Co School District. It’s not uncom-

mon to see her attending after school events.   

Samantha Aldrich works at the Irrigon Jr/Sr HS. She handles everything from small issues to big. She 

always remains calm under pressure and has been integral in establishing a good relationship between 

CCS and Irrigon Jr/Sr HS. Sam is almost a pro at doing risk assessments and can also be seen at after 

school events to make sure when students ask she can say, “Yes, I saw your game last night.”  

Baylea Luna is just now starting in the position of school counselor for AC Houghton and Irrigon Ele-

mentary schools. Even though she’s new to that position, it’s already evident that she’s great at building 

rapport, has an eye for detail and is very organized. We are excited to have her on the team!  

Rebecca Moore works part time as the school counselor at Windy River Elementary in Boardman. Re-

becca advocated to get EMDR trained to address the trauma in the high needs students at her school. 

She works really hard to meet the needs of the students while also working part time as the supervisor 

for the other school counselors in Morrow Co. She also has continued to promote the strong relationship 

CCS has with MCSD.  

 

~Lisa Helms 

 

Celebrating School Counselors continued 



Page 8 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

OPEN CCS POSITIONS 
• Mental Health Specialist, Pendleton 

• Housing Assistance Peer Support Specialist, John 
Day 

• Housing Assistance Peer Support Specialist, BHRN, 
Boardman 

• Clinical Supervisor, Lakeview Heights 

• Clinical Supervisor, Juniper Ridge 

• Supported Employment Specialist—BHRN, Morrow 
County 

• Psychiatric Mental Health Nurse Practitioner, Her-
miston 

• Mental Health Specialist III-Jail Diversion, Pend-
leton 

• Peer Support Specialist, Fossil 

• Crisis Recovery Mentor Peer Support Specialist, 
Umatilla County 

• Housing Assistance Program Coordinator, Board-
man 

• Residential Associate, Pendleton (New Roads) 

• Residential Peer Support Specialist, Heppner 

• Residential Associate (on call) Pendleton, New 
Roads 

• Human Resources Assistant, Heppner 

• Office Support Specialist, Pendleton A&D 

• DD Program Supervisor, John Day 

• Mental Health Specialist I –ACT Coordinator/
ENCC/WRAP Coordinator 

• Mental Health Specialist I, Hermiston 

• Mental Health Specialist III, John Day 

• Law Enforcement Liaison, location TBD 

• Clinical Supervisor (3 positions available), Hermis-
ton & Pendleton 

• Residential Associate (on-call), Lakeview Heights 

• Residential Associate (on-call), Columbia River 
Ranch 

• Alcohol and Drug Counselor I, Milton Freewater 

• School Based Counselor—MHS III, Pendleton 

• Impacts Program Supervisor, Morrow & Umatilla 
Counties 

• Residential Clinical Supervisor, Columbia River 
Ranch 

• Residential Associate, Westgate 

• Residential Associate, Westgate (on-call) 

• Mental Health Specialist IV, Pendleton 

• Mental Health Specialist IV, Hermiston 

• Jail Nurse, Grant County 

• Civil Commitment Abuse Complaint Investigator 
Mental Health Specialist III, Hermiston 

• Behavioral Health Resource Network Nurse Practi-
tioner, Medication Assisted Treatment, Morrow, 
Wheeler, Grant, & Gilliam Counties 

• Behavioral Health Resource Network Medication 
Assisted Treatment Certified Medical Assistant/
QMHA, Morrow, Wheeler, Grant, & Gilliam Coun-
ties 

• Mental Health Specialist IV, WFH Flexible 

• Behavioral Health Resource Network Peer Support 
Specialist, John Day 

• School Based Counselor, Mitchell 

• Behavioral Health Resource Network Peer Support 
Specialist, Condon 

• Residential Associate (part time), Juniper Ridge 

• Mental Health Specialist III/Early Assessment & 
Support Alliance Coordinator, Hermiston 

• Mental Health Specialist III/Early Assessment & 
Support Alliance Coordinator, John Day 

• Mental Health Specialist III (3 positions), Pendleton 

• Mental Health Specialist III, Hermiston 

• Mental Health Specialist III, Arlington 

• Mental Health Nurse, Lakeview Heights 

• Clinical Supervisor/Wraparound Specialist, Hermis-
ton 

• Bilingual LCSW Clinical Supervisor 

• Behavioral Health Resource Network Peer Deliv-
ered Services Supervisor, Morrow & Grant Counties 

• Alcohol & Drug Counselor I (CADC), Fossil 

• Addictions Clinical Supervisor I, Boardman 

• ACT Nurse, Boardman 

• Accreditation Coordinator, Grant County Health 
Department 

 



Page 9 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

 Nancy Wilcox, Of-
fice Support Spec, 

John Day 

 Cheyanne Pierson, 
Supported Emp Spec, 

Hermiston 

 Jessica Burger, Warmline Operator 

 Mitchell Moulton, Residential Assoc (RA), Juniper 

Ridge 

 Pauline Abrego, MHS III, Milton Freewater (MF) 

 Chris Duncan, RA, Salmon Run 

 Kym Mills, Clinical Supervisor, Boardman 

 John Thoreson, Supported Emp Spec, John Day 

 Trevar Berry, BHRN Community Liaison, John Day 

 Marty Boehlke, Peer Support Spec, Fossil 

 Hannah Foster, Supported Emp Spec, Pendleton 

 Marikka Malm, Peer Support Spec, MF 

 Lacee Salinas, QA Coordinator, Remote 

 Alicia Nino Gonzales, Warmline Operator 

 Debbie Peterson, MHS I, Pendleton 

 Marth Thomson, Warmline Operator 

 Leila Germano, Warmline Operator 

 Ann Jones, Office Support Specialist, Heppner 

 Melissa Barnes, BHRN Supported Emp Spec, Pend-

leton 

 Mychalea Osborn, Certified Medical Assistant, Pdt 

 Kyra Weaver, Housing Assistance Program Coord. 

 Dana Brannon, NP, Umatilla Co MAT 

 Roni Hickerson, Supported Employment Spec, John 

Day 

 Danielle Gray, Aid & Assist ENCC/Case Mgr 

 Kelly Keith, IT Technician III 

 Kimberly Bergstad, RA, New Roads 

 Melissa Hilding, Crisis Outreach, Pendleton 

 Cami Miller, Jail Diversion Peer Support Spec, 

Boardman 

 Nate Kennedy, Maintenance Facilities Mgr, Hermis-

ton 

 James Robinson III, ACT Nurse, Pendleton 

 Clayton Ensign, HER Mgr, John Day 

 Jayme Pettibone, Facility Administrator, Columbia 

River Ranch (CRR) 

 Gracie Garcia, Warmline Supervisor 

 Claudia Calderon de Galdamez, Community 

Health Worker, Hermiston 

 Ana Escalante, Office Support Spec, Hermiston 

 Jashua Rolfe, Maintenance Tech 

 Kirsten Goodwin, MHS/SUD, Milton Freewater 

 Kelse Landis, MHS III, Pendleton 

 Kelsie Worden, Student Mentor Coord, Heppner 

 Mayahuel Montoya, Warmline Operator 

 Mariah Wright, Peer Support Spec, John Day 

 Jason Robles, QMHA Salmon Run 

 Scotty Hearne, QMHA, New Roads 

 Claudia Guzman, RA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Devan Noblit, QMHA New Roads 

 Leo Leon, QMHA Salmon Run 

 Lusero Resendiz, RA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Khaila Dahlberg, On-call RA, New Roads 

 Haley Young, QMHA, Salmon Run 

 Angela Mendoza, RA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Bob McConnell, Assistant Admin, New Roads 

 Brandy Quezada-Hermosilla, Assist Admin, CRR 

 Heather Smidt, Clinical Supervisor, New Roads 

 Karla Valenzuela, On-call RA, CRR 

 Madalyn Rios, QMHA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Claudia Villa Estrella, RA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Mickey Sims, QMHA, Salmon Run 

 Eunice Johnson, MH Nurse, Salmon Run 

 Craig Spears, QMHA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Natalia Rosales, QMHA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Justin Michell, Facility Admin, Salmon Run 

 Kim Locker, QMHA, Salmon Run 

 Nancy Keith, QMHA, Columbia River Ranch 

 Patty Amorosino, MHS III/Crisis, Pendleton 

 Delaina Onate Vasquez, RA, Lakeview Heights 

 Staci Hedman, Billing Spec, Heppner 

 Tim Handforth, Zero Suicide Coordinator, Remote 



COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  Page 10 

PROBLEM GAMBLING CORNER, CHRIS OLWINE & LANCE HAWKINS 

Have you checked out the company store: 
https://www.myccsstore.com/ 

 Isabelle Sauers, RA, Westgate 

 Aubree Ritch, RA, Westgate 

 Jasmine Colllin, HR Assistant, Heppner 

 Caryn Dunn, A&D Counselor, Pendleton 

 Makayla Kelly, MHS I Skills Trainer, Milton Free-

water 

 Rikki Griffin, School Based Counselor, Pendleton 

 Mariah Delepierre, MHS Skills Trainer, Pendleton 

 Jenn Slippy, School Based Counselor, Pendleton 

 Amanda Ortega, MHD III, Hermiston 

 Andrea Walker, Warmline Operator 

 Kaylee Seelye, Office Support Spec, Pendleton 

 Kim Bache, Warmline Operator 

 Carley Hibbert, MHS III, Pendleton 

 Teela Kilby, Peer Support Spec, Fossil 

 Brooke Ansotegui, School Based Counselor, Ione  

 Grant Way, RA, Juniper Ridge 

 Maria Hermandez, Warmline Operator 

 AJ Ansotegui, RA, Juniper Ridge 

 Bertha Woods, Warmline Shift Leader, Milwaukie 

https://www.myccsstore.com/


Page 11 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

Being positive in the workplace will help you be 
a more effective worker, but it can also improve 
your overall well-being, as you spend less time 
immersed in the negative. Check out these great 
tips from Chron.com.  

Step 1    Put your work in perspective. Remem-
ber that what happens at work is rarely a personal 
attack, and if it is, it is rarely legitimate. Before 

reacting negatively to a work situation, ask your-
self three questions: Is it personal? Is it perma-
nent? And does it matter in the big picture? If the 
answer is no, you can put the situation in its place 
by realizing that it is not that big of a deal and de-
voting your energies to more important things. 

Step 2    Act positive and friendly even if you 
don't mean it. You don't have to lie in those con-
versations. You can simply focus on something 
like a joke or a funny story instead of doom-and-
gloom rumors. Camaraderie is one way to keep 
the blues away, encourage after-work social 
events with your coworkers. This can help you 
feel like you're all working on the same team, 
even if the office has been experiencing some 
rough times lately.  

Step 3    Do your work well and don't sell your-
self short. Set high but achievable goals for your-
self, and reward yourself when you achieve them; 
stay motivated and take pride in your accomplish-
ments. Be passionate about your work, and show 
your coworkers and boss that passion by volun-
teering for extra duties or sharing your innovative 
ideas with others. When someone congratulates 
you, thank them, but don't say something like, 
"No, it wasn't me" or "I don't deserve it." Accord-
ing to MSN Careers, people who use negative self
-talk are less likely to achieve their goals than peo-
ple who constantly remind themselves that they 
can do a job or they are worthy of a promotion. 
Further, your motivation and positive attitude 
will encourage managers to want to work with 
you more, possibly qualifying you for promotions 

and special projects. 

Step 4    Have a good work-life balance. Start a 
new hobby or try something new, like scuba div-
ing, fly a kite with your child. If you are constant-
ly thinking about work, the negative things that 
are happening there will start to dampen your 
whole outlook on life, simply making you more 
ready to contribute to the negative work environ-
ment already in your office the next time you 
walk through the door. In addition, being too 
overwhelmed with work is enough to make any-

one negative, and your negative feelings about 
work may simply stem from the fact that all you 
ever do is work. 

 

Here are a few other 
things I have done 
that really help me 
keep positive!  

 Take a walk, 

fresh air is a 
great way to 
clear your mind and revive. Sometimes just 
taking a few minutes away from work does a 
lot of good.  

 What things are you grateful for? Make a 

list….family, friends, health.  It’s difficult to 
feel down when you are feeling such grati-
tude.  

 Do something nice for someone, no matter 

how simple; clean the snow off a co-workers 
vehicle before you leave work. It is a feel good 
gift.  

 How you chose to react to your circumstances 
is within your own control. Always chose to 
react with dignity.  

In the end your attitude is yours to own! 

Christine Gray, Human Resources 

HR Tip  



 

 Brandie Baxter 

 Robert Brown 

 Eduardo Cornejo 

 Steven Coultas 

 Rick Dowdy 

 Sarah Goodman-Strong 

 Hailey Hartley 

 Janessa Headley 

 Rebecca Humphreys 

 Serena Humphreys 

 Tina Hunsinger 

 Ty Kennison 

 Jasmine Landeros 

 Kaylee Ledbetter 

 Stace Lee 

 Daniel Love 

 Angela Marlow 

 Jacki Miller 

 Payton Miller 

 Rebecca Perry 

 Alisha Reed 

 Jack Rios-Shibata 

 Harley Rogers 

 Brian Sweeney 

 Tamara Sword 

 Alisom Thomas 

 Gayle Townsend 

 Madyson Warr 

 Alexxis Weeks 

 Kyara Zepeda 

Congratulations!! The following staff have recently accepted new po-

sitions within CCS. 
 

 Kasandra Kennedy, Residential Clinical 

Manager 

 Audrey Williams, Warmline Supervisor 

 Seth Perciano, Warmline Supervisor 

 Alita Nelson, Housing Program Manager 

 Jessica Bilings, Office Support Specialist 

 Jo Gabbard, Health Promotions Coordinator A&D Prevention 

 Alex Sandoval, MHS I, EASA 

 Brandy Stills, Accounting Clerk-Accounts Receivable 

 Baylea Luna, School Based Counselor 

 

Page 12 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

CCS said good bye to the following staff, we wish them the best in their future endeavors! 



Page 13 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

 
 
 
 
CCS has a few items no longer in use [vehicles that we have rotated out as well as the equipment from the former workout room in 

Heppner (now converted to an office)].  We are trying something new and will make these items available for purchase.  In the effort 

to be as fair as possible and ensure that everyone has an equal shot at purchasing the items we will be doing a sealed bid process. 

Bidding:  Nothing fancy here, just indicate the vehicle or item you would like to purchase and your bid amount for that item, don’t 

forget to include your name.  It can be on a sticky note, a post card, sheet of paper, whatever you like.  We just ask that it is in a 

sealed envelope.  You can mail or hand deliver your bids to the Heppner office at Attention Rick Worden, PO Box 469, Heppner, OR  

97836.      

Bids will be accepted until 5:00 PM Tuesday February 28, 2023. 

Bids will be opened by Kristie, Matt & Rick the following day and the winners notified.   

 

ALL ITEMS ARE SOLD AS IS 

2007 Chevy Uplander:  Automatic, 148,917 miles, AC works, needs tires, check engine light is on – minimum bid $950 
Vehicle currently located in Pendleton 

 

*************************************************************************************************************************** 

2009 Ford Focus:  5spd manual transmission, 100,520 miles – minimum bid $1,500 
Vehicle currently located in Boardman 



Page 14 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

 
 
 
 
2014 Chevy Cruz:  Automatic, 102,831 miles, AC currently not working – minimum bid $3,000  
Vehicle currently located in Pendleton 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*************************************************************************************************************************** 

NordicTrack C 850 S Treadmill – minimum bid $300, currently located in Heppner 

 



Page 15 COMMUNITY COUNSELING CONNECTIONS  

JUST FOR FUN! 

Boardman MH Office,  Derby Squad  “Attack the Panic”, 

Halloween  2022 

Hermiston A&D Office, Halloween 2022 

Irrig
o

n
 W

a
te

rm
e

lo
n

 P
a

ra
d

e
 

Grant County Fair Parade 







Board Minutes, March 15, 2023 Page 2 of 7 

an analysis for the March 15th BOC Meeting on the effects of repealing and replacing the 
ordinance and a motion was made to that end.  Chair Sykes said he has since learned Mr. Nelson 
determined it would be more appropriate to ask an outside legal counsel with expertise in these 
matters to provide the analysis.   

Mr. Nelson said he contacted Bob Blackmore, Innova Legal Advisors PC, and forwarded 
documentation to him from both districts, as well as a list of specific questions from the Board.  
Mr. Nelson said he did not know the exact timeline, yet, for Mr. Blackmore’s availability to 
provide his analysis. 

Request for Letter of Support of Ambulance Licensing 
Chair Sykes said the format for this item would be the same as on Feb. 22nd when Chief Hughes 
requested to repeal Ordinance MC-C-4-98 – a representative from each district would speak and 
have the ability to rebut, however, there would be no comments from the public.  

After Chief Hughes sought confirmation, Chair Sykes agreed comments would be limited to the 
topic on the agenda, as was the case on the 22nd.  

Chief Hughes said the application process for an ambulance license in the State of Oregon 
requires a letter of support from the governing body.  If BFRD is allowed to go through the 
estimated 60-day process and becomes licensed, there would be no impact to the County’s 
ambulance system.  MCHD would continue to operate as it does because it’s clear BFRD is not a 
transport agency within the Ambulance Service Area (ASA) Plan.  BFRD would be able to 
provide service to partner agencies, such as the Oregon Military Department, Umatilla County 
Fire District #1, and possibly the Naval Bombing Range.  

Ms. Roberts said the Agenda Packet included a letter from the Health District’s attorney, Troy 
Bundy, that covered four points:  1.)  The definition in Oregon Administrative Rule is at issue.  It 
says what needs to be provided is whether there is a documented need for the service supported 
by the county government.  2.)  Under the current County Ordinance from 1998, no ambulance 
can operate in the County that is not incorporated into the ASA Plan.  3.)  Under the current 1998 
ordinance, it charges the EMS (Emergency Medical Services) Advisory Committee with making 
the determination to make changes or additions to the ASA Plan.  That is the appropriate group 
to hear the request and no formal request in writing, with explanations, has been brought to them.  

As the discussion continued, Chair Sykes asked if the request could wait for the legal response 
from Mr. Blackmore, as discussed earlier.  Commissioner Drago said he was not against waiting 
on Mr. Blackmore’s analysis, adding he thought there was a need but they were hearing too 
many different stories.  Chair Sykes encouraged the Commissioners to send their questions to 
Mr. Blackmore. 

Commissioner Drago moved to table the letter of support to be readdressed at the April 5th 
meeting.  Commissioner Wenholz seconded.  Vote:  Unanimous approval. 

Request for Letter of Support, PGE Hydrogen Project 

Item 5d

Draf
t



















































































No documents submitted for 

this agenda item. 



No documents submitted for this 
agenda item
























































	Agenda
	Minutes - March 15, 2023
	Am. 7 to OHA IGA #173145 - Mental Health Services
	Am. 8 to OHA IGA #173145 - Mental Health Services
	Contract w/DLR Group
	CCS Quarterly Report - First Pages
	CCS Report - Combined.pdf
	1 CCS DEI Report Soil and Shadow
	2 CCS Org Chart
	3 CCS Consumer Survey
	4 CCS Newsletter

	Update on PGE Hydrogen Project
	Review Tabled Motion - 3-15-23 Minutes Excerpt
	Request to Repeal Ordinance MC-C-4-98
	Amending Approval of ROW Permits; Ordinance ORD-2023-3
	Public Transit Advisory Committee Appointment Request
	Road Dept. Monthly Report
	Sheriff's Office Monthly Report
	Fair Office Quarterly Report
	District Attorney Quarterly Report
	HR Quarterly Report
	Public Health Dept. Quarterly Report
	Administrator's Monthly Report
	Correspondence
	Public Hearing:  Strategic Investment Program Agreement with Amazon Data Services, Inc.



